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THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

April 9, 1975

MEMORANDUM TO: PHILIP W, BUCHEN

FROM: JAY T, FRENCH w\

In accordance with your request I reviewed the memorandum of
Chairman Goodell to the President dated April 10, 1975 concerning
S. 1290, A copy of the memoradnum and the Senate bill are
attached in Tabs A and B respectively.

It is my opinion that S. 1290 raises several larger issues than those
which are raised in Chairman Goodell's memo, Generally these larger
issues concern the infringement of the President's pardon power by the
Congress,

By discussing my concerns informally with Bruce Fein at the Department
of Justice, I learned that last year the office of Legal Counsel testified
on a different amnesty bill indicating in its testimony generally that the
proposed measure was unconstitutional.

Also, Jack Marsh in a recent memo has stated that Marty Hoffman will
be testifying for the Defense Department on S, 1290, Marty Hoffman
wants to be certain that all administration spokesmen carry the same
message to the Hill,

It is recommended that we request an informal opinion from the Justice
Department with respect to the constitutionality of S, 1290, and that

we then convene a meeting of all those who will be testifying on this bill
to reach a consensus,

If you concur, I will take appropriate action to obtain such an opinion, and
I will set up a meeting for friday, April 11, to discuss these issues. The
meeting would include Justice, Defense, Clemency Board, Jack Marsh
and you.
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The principal argument for taking a position in support of S. 1290 is
that it essentially urges Congressional adoption of your program.
Congressional passage of the bill will constitute, in the public's eyes, a
statement that your clemency program has broadly-based national
support, and that it was the right kind of program to create, If there
are to be political costs of an extension of the application deadline,
those costs would thereafter be shared by éongress.

Cn the other hand, institutionalization cof the clemency program may
keep alive an issue which you sought to have closed in a limited period
of time., You set an application deadline originally because you did
"want closure on public discussion of the issue. Indefinite extension

of the deadline may prevent that closure, and may prolong the life of
clemency as a political issue,

I do not believe that argument to be dispositive, because I believe that
clemency will remain a political issue irrespective of the position you

take, and that deadline extension will not contribute to the intensity of
discussion of that issue. The Clemency Board has ended its public
information campaign, and there will be no more television advertisements,
barnstorming trips, or press conferences, If applicants continue to come
into your program, they will do so quietly, without any public visibility.

It has been my consistent experience, confirmed by the experience of
the other Board members, that most of the opposition to your program

is based on ignorance and confusion. Whenever we have explained its
details, whether General Walt to veterans groups, or Father Hesburgh
and I to others, initial hostility has changed at least to tolerance and
very often to explicit support. For example, many service organizations
are surprised to learn that the program has real benefits for VN
veterans. It is my belief, and the Board members concur, that your
program -- properly explained -- can be popular, and widely accepted

as a fair and reasonable solution to the difficult amnesty/clemency issue.

There is a danger, should S. 1290 come out of committee to the Senate
and House floors, that a2 spate of floor amendments will change a simple
extension which you find relatively unobjectionable into a hodge-podge
which you will feel compelled to veto,

If you support Congressional extension of the deadline, you will provide
a live option for some supporters of unconditional amnesty to coalesce
quietly around, in lieu of public debate on the merits of unconditiona
amnesty. If you oppose Congressional extension of the deadline, there
will be substantial debate on the Hill, That debate will probably rise






DISCUSSION

The Congressional supporters of S. 1290 believe that equity and
consistency in the treatment of similarly situated applicants will be
greatest if all the parts of your clemency program are under the
jurisdiction of the Clemency Board, instead of being split between
the Board and three Departments. Moreover, the Congressional
supporters of the bill argue that the Board projects to potential
applicants an image of your clement intent which is more likely to
attract applicants to the clemency program than the images projected
by the three Departments.

On the other hand, you originally split the jurisdiction of your program
four ways because the Justice Department is uniquely qualified to
engage in plea bargaining negotiation with draft evaders who have

not yet been indicted, and the Defense and Transportation Departments
are uniquely qualified to handle through their normal procedures
military deserters who have not yet been discharged from their service,

The rationale for that original decision remains, although the history of
your clemency program does support the proposition that inequities and
inconsistencies in assignment of length of alternate service have been
present as a result of the program's being split into four jurisdictions.

OPTIONS i

(a) Support Congressional folding of 2ll clemency decisions
into the Presidential Clemency Board, removing
jurisdiction from the three Departments

(b) No position
* -
(c) Oppose Congressional folding of all clemency decision-
making into the Presidential Clemency Board

RECOMMENDATION

I recommend option (c)--that you remain consistent with your original
decision to split jurisdiction under the clemency program, and oppose
Congressional folding of the whole program into the Board.

DECISION (a) : (b) (c)

111, Should draft evader and deserter exiles in foreign countries
be permitted to visit this country for thirty days each year?




BACKCGROUND

S. 1290 provides that those eligible for your clemency program who

choose not to apply for clemency will be permitted to come home to

visit, under a non-immigrant visa, for thirty days a year, with
immunity from arrest and prosecution during those thirty days.

DISCUSSION

-

Although most potential applicants under your program have turned

out not to be ideologically motivated, there are some who have not

. accepted your clemency offer either for ideological reasons or because
they have stable families and jobs in other countries, and dare not
disrupt those stable situations.

The Javits -Nelson bill assumes that there is a significant number of
such people who will never come back to this country to live, but who
have families here. The bill seeks to permit the reunification of those
troubled families by allowing an annual visiting period.

This issue raises again the specter of the exiles -- the most politically
sensitive group, on which excessive media has been focused.

OPTIONS
(a) Support thirty -day visiting period for exiles
(b) No position
(c) Oppose thirty-day visiting periods for exiles
RECOMMENDATION

Consistently with your taking no position on the legislation as a whole,

I recommend option {(b)--nc position on the visiting period question, If
there is to be an act of mercy to exiles and their families, let Congress
assume the responsibility for the immunity from prosecution decision
which is essential to that act of mercy.

DECISION  (a) (b) (c) .

IV, Assuming extension of your clemency program, should
its scope be broadened to include offenses cther than
draft evasion and desertion?

BACKGROUND

Several bills have been introduced in the House to provide unconditional
amnesty for a variety of categories of offenses., Most of those bills
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cover offenses beyond draft evasion and desertion, such as failure

to obey a lawful order and draft counselling. Some of the bills
provide for amnesty for any ofiense if it is shown that the offense
was substantially motivated by moral opposition to the Indochina wazr.

-

DISCUSSION

In choosing to have your clemency program cover only draft evasion
and desertion offenses, you extended an offer of clemency to two
categories of people most of whose offenses were not related to moral
opposition to the war, The Congressional sponsors of amnesty
legislation admit that extension of coverage to different offenses
would fold into the clemency program a large number of people

who did not act out of conscience., They further argue, however,

that your original clemency program has already done that--and

they are correct,

One possible task is to enumerate a list of offenses (draft counselling,
for example) not included in your clemency program, but committed
by many people for reasons of conscience, An alternative tack,
designed to restrict clemency to those who acted for moral reasons,

is to broaden the jurisdiction of your clemency program to cover any
offense, but to stipulate that clemency may only be offered if a clear
showing is made that the offense was committed as an act of conscience
in opposition to the war. A third tack is to maintain that you have
already covered most of those who have acted in conscience, since
most of them are evaders and deserters, and that the program!s
jurisdiction should not be extended to further offenses, however
motivated.

Since it has turned out that most of the evaders and deserters before

the Board have not committed their offenses because of moral opposition
to the war, it seems irrational fo me to take that third tack, even though
that is most consistent with your original position,

We can justly argue, based on the experience of the Board and of the
Defense Department, that we have learned since September that most-
of those eligible for your clemency program did not act out of moral
opposition to the war, and there are a lost of people who did and whose
offenses are not covered by the program. A change in your position
is justified by your having learned new facts from the experience of
your program, -



OPTIONS

() Support broadening of scope of clemency program to
include several new specified categories of offenses

(b) Support broadening of scope of clemency program to
include any offense, provided that a showing is made

in individual cases that the offense was committed as
an act of conscience

(c) No position, but would not veto broadening as in
option (b) above

(d) No position
(e) Oppose broadening to other offenses

RECOMMENDATION

Consistently with your taking no position on clemency extension
as a whole, and consistently with what you have learned about
the clemency problem since your program began, I recommend
option (c)--no position, but you would not veto broadening to any
offense, provided a showing is made that an individual offense
was committed as an act of conscience,

DECISION
@ b (c) (@)
(e) ' | .





